
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   23 November 2016 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 30 November 2016 

beginning at 
11:45 am 

in 
16/17 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, Hampshire SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, Cross, Van Niekerk 
 County Councillors Grajewski, House and Kyrle 
 Mr Jackson and Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and McCormick 
 Matt Blythe, Local Area Manager  
 Cerian Trevan and Tim Kelly,Hampshire Cultural Trust  
   
  
Staff Contact: Amy Thorne, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 80688361 Email: amy.thorne@eastleigh.gov.uk  
   
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 7 - 14) 
 
4. Finance Report    (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
5. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 5 July 2016  (10:30 am – 11:50 am) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Broadhurst, Cross and 
Van Niekerk 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Grajewski and Kyrle 
 
Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillors Andrewes and 
McCormick 
 

 Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Tim Kelly - Hampshire Cultural Trust 

Cerian Trevan - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
 Diccon Bright - Local Area Co-ordinator 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Keith House and Mr 
Jackson 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
 The Chairmanship of the Joint Management Committee alternates annually 

between the two authorities. For the year 2016/17 the Chairman should be 
appointed from the Borough Council members of the Committee.  
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That Councillor Broadhurst be appointed Chair of the Joint 
Management Committee for the 2016/17 municipal year. 

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 The Vice-Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities. For 

the year 2016/17 the Vice-Chairman should be appointed from the County 
Council members of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Councillor Kyrle be appointed Vice-Chair of the Joint 
Management Committee for the 2016/17 municipal year. 

 
3. MINUTES 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2016 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 

1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

4. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 Members were advised that the Curator, Erica Munro, left the Hampshire 

Cultural Trust for a new position at the end of March. Cerian Trevan had 
now been appointed. She started her new role with the Hampshire Cultural 
Trust on 20 June 2016 and previously worked at Stonehenge. 
 
The absence of a VSA, who left in January, had meant that the site had not 
been cleaned as regularly or as thoroughly as usual. The mill had been 
covered by casual staff who had acted as Duty Manager. The interim area 
Curator had worked with a volunteer and the miller to clean the interior of 
the mill, clear some of the pond, clear the paths of weeds leading up to the 
windmill and strim the edges beside the windmill. A new VSA started at the 
windmill on 20 May. Although it appeared that the number of volunteers had 
dwindled to one regular person and a garden volunteer in recent months, 
the interim area curator had contacted all previous volunteers and they were 
still keen to help. A new volunteer was also in the process of being added to 
the team. 
 
The new outbuilding comprising the visitors’ toilets and volunteer’s room had 
now been completed providing much improved facilities. The improvements 
to the inside of the windmill cap; the installation of a lightning conductor on 
the exterior of the mill and signage for disabled car parking were completed 
at the end of April. Funding of £10,000 had recently been secured via the 
TESCO Bags of Help scheme. It was anticipated that the entrance fence 
would be replaced, perimeter fences would be repaired re-using good 
pieces of the entrance fence, two large sleepers with a kick board would 
define the edges of the pond and allow wheelchair access and two external 
lights on the Chineham Barn would be installed for evening events. 
 
One of the aims for this year was to set the sails to grind wheat and make 
flour. For several weeks the staff at the mill had been watching the weather 
forecast and had a couple of abortive attempts when the forecast wind didn’t 
arrive. The sails on the mill had finally been turned to make flour for the first 
time in 5 years. The miller had sourced a supplier for grain and costings 
were being established. It was hoped that visitor figures would start to pick 
up now the mill had started to grind grain. Special events and out of hours 
visits had been planned which would help to increase numbers. 
  
From July – September the Windmill would be opening on Saturdays as well 
as Sundays and it was hoped that the additional day would increase visitor 
numbers, especially if the sails of the mill were rotating. The plan was then 
to close the mill in the quiet months of November, December and January, 
when it was hard to attract visitors, except for specific events. A number of 
events had been planned for the summer months including; special 
Sundays, Minibeasts at the Mill, Ways with Wood and the Great Bursledon 
Bake Off. 
 
The Hampshire Cultural Trust’s Emergency Conservation Unit came to the 
rescue on the Bank Holiday Monday to carryout repairs to the windmill 

2



 

 

following the storm on Easter Sunday. A bolt within the braking mechanism 
bent allowing some turning of the brake mechanism.  The bolt was replaced 
and minor repairs made to the woodwork.  This may have been the result of 
an inherent weakness that has developed over time in the bolt or the 
change in wind direction during the storm.  There was no evidence of lasting 
damage to the mill. The conservators returned to the mill to repair the 
automaton model of the mill and measure up in preparation for renewing the 
windmill governor belt, which was installed in June. 
 
There had been several enquiries from schools, but no bookings for 
February to April. Schools seem to want to be able to buy flour and make 
bread as the follow-up to the visit so until the mill was producing flour again, 
schools were favouring other mill visits such as Winchester City Mill. 
However, there were bookings in place for the summer term and it was 
hoped the usual harvest season bookings would be in for September and 
October. The CELO attended the Hampshire Primary History Teachers’ 
Conference and promoted the service to 68 teachers. The CELO, Janet 
Wildman retired from the Hampshire Cultural Trust at the end of April. 
Elements of her post have been taken on by Rebecca Parrant, Cultural 
Engagement Manager for Schools. 
  
A new edition of What’s On covering the period May to August featuring 
Bursledon Windmill was delivered at the beginning of April. 12,500 copies 
were printed and it were now in circulation. The e-newsletter Museums 
Monthly, featuring exhibitions and events from Bursledon, now had over 
2500 subscribers and was promoting features such as Special Sundays, 
Might Mill Event and the Easter Activities on Social Media and the website. 
Postcodes were routinely collected from visitors which were profiled 
annually using Mosaic software and provided ongoing information on which 
groups of people were using the services and how individual visitor profiles 
compared to the local area.  This fed into the service and marketing 
planning processes.  
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
5. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and 

Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running the Windmill was to be 
shared between the partner authorities.   The report provided an update on 
the budget for 2015/16 and 2016/17 (Appendix 1) and the committee were 
asked to note the contents of the update, approve the budget for 2016/17 
and make a decision whether to take up BDO’s offer of a limited financial 
review.   
 
The 2015/16 budget for Bursledon Windmill provided in Appendix 1 to the 
report reflected proposed partner contributions as follows:  
 

 Venue Management – salaries and costs; 

 Public Programmes (exhibitions); 

3



 

 

 Collections; 

 Better Life Chances; and 

 Business Development. 
 

The budget headings reflected the headings in the Venue Plans, making it 
easier to understand where money was being spent and how Bursledon 
Windmill directly benefit. The budget had been modelled to include staff 
increments and the 1% pay award. They also included more accurate 
projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which would be 
included in the trading arm and projected income from gift aid (where 
applicable). In addition, it was intended to report occasionally on external 
investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received 
from volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or 
organisations.  It was noted that figures shown for 2016/17 were not end of 
year figures.   
 
A letter from BDO was attached to the report, which advertised a limited 
assurance financial review service to the committee.  It was reported that 
the audits that BDO carried out in the past, for small bodies were no longer 
necessary.  Members were advised that Hampshire Cultural Trust, as a 
charitable body, would submit audited accounts for the trust on an annual 
basis.  It was felt that there was no benefit to the Committee to take up 
BDO’s offer.    
 

It was AGREED that 
 
(1) the 2015/16 and 2016/17 budget updates be noted; 

 
(2) the 2016/17 budget be approved; 
 
(3) BDO’s offer of financial services be declined. 

 
6. BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE 
 
 Tim Kelly advised that due to future funding cuts to the windmill, Hampshire 

Cultural Trust (HCT) felt that the future funding for the windmill was 
dependent primarily on the trust’s overarching fundraising plans, as the 
return on investment from more global plans was likely to be more 
significant.  
 
In order to manage the reduced funding the Trust had planned to broaden 
its funding base towards providing a sustainable way forward. Currently the 
trust was working on broadening funding via: Corporate Partners and 
Ambassadors, Better Life Chances, Happenings and Trusts and 
Foundations; Donations and Gift Aid and Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy. 
There were also local plans in place including; volunteer development and 
milling. 
 
Since April 2015, the trust has raised around £70,000 from Corporate and 
Ambassador sponsorship. There was a positive start to the new financial 

4



 

 

year 16/17; securing an additional Corporate partner and increasing the 
donor pool by 5%, receiving over £13,000 in donations.  
As part of the Culture Stops project, the retail offer at the Windmill will be 
improved by introducing better ranges and more products for the Hampshire 
Fare community. The viability of selling good quality hot drinks on site was 
also being investigated. The Director of Mozzo Coffee, based in 
Southampton, was visiting the mill in the coming weeks to provide an expert 
assessment and make recommendations. In addition the new Chief 
Operating Officer for the trust, Paul Sapwell, was due to start on the 1 
August and had significant experience in the food and beverage sector. 
 
Marketing colleagues were working on a new streamlined process for Gift 
Aid and it was hoped to encourage further promotions in the new year.  The 
trust had just signed up with the National Fundraising Scheme and was able 
to take donations online and via SMS. The trust was also in the process of 
reviewing CRM/ticketing systems that would enable a donor management 
programme.  Once this was in place online giving would be promoted 
through all appropriate fundraising and marketing literature, driving 
prospects to the website.   
 
Cerian Trevan the Community Museums Curator for the South East of 
Hampshire, was picking up the trail of flour production and would report 
further on this in the coming months.  Gary Freeman, the miller, had been 
awaiting the right conditions for flour production and had produced the mill’s 
first flour for some time.  The possibility of producing flour for sale was being 
investigated by Cerian. 
 
In order to boost visitor numbers and secondary spend, in the summer 
months the mill would be open Saturdays and Sundays and closing in the 
height of winter, when visitor numbers decreased.  Along with improvements 
in café and retail, and the appointment of new posts that had greater retail 
and catering expertise, the foundations were being laid to increase visitor 
numbers and income.  
 
In conclusion Tim advised that the windmill would continue to be supported 
by HCT, however it was important to recognise that ongoing support would 
be enabled by wider trust strategies for future funding. 
 
Councillor Van Niekerk advised that it was encouraging to receive more 
information and on behalf of Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local 
Area Committee (BHH LAC), it had addressed the concerns they had. She 
was happy to report that there had been enough progress made that funding 
could be released on the proviso that it would come back to the June 2016 
meeting for further discussion on the future funding of the project. Tim Kelly 
advised that they could be completely transparent and would happily share 
any information that was sought. 
 
Diccon Bright advised that after the meeting he would work with BHH LAC 
to establish what further information was required before June 2016. 
 

5



 

 

It was AGREED that the progress be noted. 
 
7. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 To be arranged and communicated by Democratic Services. 
 
M5677 

6



1 
 

  
  

  

Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 30 NOV 2016 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Cerian Trevan 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
 
1  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site 
 

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery 
 
 
Both Cerian Trevan, as Community Museum Manager, and Jeff Witcher, as Visitor 
Services Assistant, started at the Windmill at the beginning of the summer providing much 
needed consistency in staffing. Jeff has an extensive background in customer service 
delivery and has been working on improving the visitor experience over the summer 
including the welcome to site and promotion of events.  
 
In line with improving visitor experience and facilities at site we installed a coffee machine 
in July to allow us to provide hot drinks to visitors for the first time. To complement this a 
new range of soft drinks was also developed and proved popular over the summer. Work 
now needs to be done to figure out how to install a hot water boiler so tea can also be 
offered. 
 
With the volunteer team having dwindled to one long-term interpretation volunteer and a 
garden volunteer a key focus for the summer has been to increase volunteer numbers. We 
now have a growing team of 3 new welcome/interpretation volunteers, 1 returning 
volunteer and 2 new mill assistant volunteers. Jeff has been interviewing and inducting the 
welcome volunteers over the last few months and we now regularly have at least two 
volunteers per day on site and they are all also keen to support events at site. I have also 
recently interviewed the two new Mill Assistants and am working on developing a training 
programme for them and the new staff. 
 
The increase in volunteers and new staff have meant that cleaning and maintenance are 
easier to keep on top of. The barn and visitor facilities are now cleaned regularly and are in 
much better condition. Gary has carried out a lot of maintenance around site including 
grass cutting, hedge cutting, tidying up round the front of the barn and pond clearance. He 
also found a local tree surgeon who was willing to give us spare wood he had which will 
ensure we can supply the pizza ovens so Gary has been chopping that up and making 
sure it will dry out over winter. Since the tree surgeon very generously gave us a bit more 
wood than we were expecting (!) Gary has been using it to create a rustic seating area by 
the beautiful lavender flowerbed in view of the pond.  
 

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill 
Covering period July 2016 – Sept 2016 

7

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

Work has also been progressing on the site maintenance plans related to the Tesco Bags 
of Help Grant. Bursledon was successful in securing a £10,000 grant for works to improve 
the external areas of site. I am in the last stages of finalising the quote and works with the 
contractor and they should start on site in early Nov. Works will include extending the 
boardwalk around the exposed sides of the pond to improve safety and access, replacing 
the damaged fencing at the entrance and repairing other sections around site, installing 
outside lights to the barn and creating another flower bed at the front of the barn.  
 

 
 
I have also been working with Gary and our H&S Advisor to 
develop a Safe Working Practice for climbing the sails which, 
amongst other things, will enable us to re-paint them.  
 
With a complete site team and two new mill volunteers (there is 
one other who is still interested who has been involved 
previously as well) I have been working on developing a 
training plan and completing all the outstanding maintenance or 
H&S tasks to the mill to enable us to start operating it to full 
capacity again. I have contacted Fosters Mill who provided 
training in 2014 and are able to do so again, I am hoping to 
book this in for Nov time. I have aso been in touch with Ian 

Clark who will hopefully be able to provide maintenance and training support for us, I will 
be meeting him on site in early Nov. The other key aim is to build up a team of people from 
within the Trust who are trained in emergency procedures such as turning the cap to 
provide support out of hours if high winds are experienced. 
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2011 – 
2012 

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866 

 
2012 – 
2013 

385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314 

 
2013 – 
2014 

252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719 

2014 – 
2015  

252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152 

2015-
2016 

298 383 315 282 563 274 431 129 24 109 142 263 3213 

2016-
2017 

170 124 150 142 309 160   Closed Closed Closed   

 
Visitor numbers continue to be down on last year throughout the summer. This is 
disappointing, but likely a combination of a lack of permanent site staff for the early 
season, a lack of marketing as a result and the windmill not being fully operational. In 
addition a drop in numbers would be expected a year or two following a re-launch. With a 

8



3 
 

full team now in place the aim is to address this for next year with an exciting programme 
of events and activities that is properly marketed and a regularly operational windmill.  
 
Special Sundays – Get Buzzy 10 July 
 
This was a lovely event run in-house by our very dedicated volunteer Andrea who created 
lots of bee themed games and activities for children and families to enjoy plus some bee-
related craft activities to have a go at. 
 
Ways with Wood – 31 July 
 
This event was combined into one day with the adult workshop taking place alongside the 
children’s activities. As a result there was basket-weaving, clay modelling, tile making, bug 
hotel building, wind chime making and broomstick making activities available, all using 
wood in inventive and creative ways. With so many activities on offer a lot of the families 
stayed for a number of hours coming back to do more and more of the crafts. 
 
The Great Bursledon Bake Off – 17 August 
 
Once again this event was a huge success. This event was led by the team from SEARCH 
ably assisted by site staff and volunteers. It was a beautiful sunny day and over 150 
people visited site with 107 pizzas being made and cooked in the bread ovens. Visitors of 
all ages thoroughly enjoyed the pizza making and eating and exploring the site. Local MP 
Mims Davies visited with her children and said  
 
“We enjoyed a wonderful sunny afternoon at the Windmill, my children thoroughly enjoyed 
the history, creative cookery and beauty of this very inspired event. I would like to thank all 
the volunteers that helped with the pizza preparations especially the hot work of cooking 
each pan in the outdoor bread ovens.” 
 
 

 
Figure 1: Pizzas coming out the ovens 

 

9



4 
 

 
Figure 2: MP Mims Davies and family with Gary the Miller 

 
Special Sundays – Windmill Making 18 September 
 
This was another in-house event devised by Andrea where children were able to make 
their own windmill to take home. While visitor numbers that day were not high the families 
that took part in the activity really enjoyed it. 
 
Autumn events 
 
For the rest of the autumn season we have two more Special Sunday events – Pond 
Dipping and Craft with Corn plus a Woodland Shadows event during half term supported 
by SEARCH and Spooky Mill in Nov where there is the opportunity to tour the mill by 
torchlight. 
 
2   Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice 
 
2.1 Caring for collections  
 
Since the installation of the governor belt the conservators have been checking with the 
on-site team that it is working correctly. They have also been helping with contacting Ian 
Clark, a meeting has been arranged with him to discuss conducting a mill inspection and 
load testing on the sack hoist, but also the possibility of assistance with training. 
 
2.2 Promoting access to collections and providing specialist knowledge and 

advice 
 
Our Curator of Natural Sciences, has been preparing resources for the ponding dipping 
event that will take place on the 9th Oct. She will be bringing along a number of specimens 
and activities for kids from her collections. 
 
 

10



5 
 

3  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

3.1  Formal Education Provision 
 

Schools finished for their summer holidays in mid-July so we have not facilitated any 

school led visits during the months of July-August. 

 

Forward Planning  

 

We have reviewed our school workshop programme in time for the new academic year 

and will be focussing on our top learning programmes: KS1: Little Red Hen & the Grain 

Chain and KS2: Flour Power. The learning resources for each workshop are currently 

being refreshed and we will be actively promoting the offers at the NQT conference in 

Winchester on 6 & 7 October. We also hope to produce a revised HCT Schools Learning 

guide to replace the 2014 version, this would be sent to schools and educators across the 

Hampshire region.         

 

Bursledon Windmill will be undergoing building work in November, so we have tried to 

ensure that we facilitate bookings in the early part of October to avoid any clashes and tie 

in with the harvest festival. We have already received a numbers of enquiries for 

workshops, and we have several confirmed bookings in October. Freegrounds Junior 

School will bringing all of their Year 3 pupils for a visit. We will also be welcoming pupils 

from Newtown Soberton School, St Jude’s Catholic Primary School and a Home 

Educators group. 

 
3.2  Better Life Chances 
 
Families: We ran a very successful family event led by the Ashcroft Centre in July called 
Ways with Wood. This offered lots of child and adult craft activities to get involved with and 
many families chose to stay for the whole morning/afternoon going round and trying lots of 
the different crafts. 
 
Adults: The museum has become part of the local Dementia Action Alliance in Bursledon 
representing the heritage sector within the group which includes local businesses and 
volunteer organisations. An on-going ambition of the Better Life Chances team is to 
develop a network of dementia friendly museums across the Trust by offering staff and 
volunteers Dementia Friends training. 
 

 
 

. 
Out of hour’s bookings: As with school groups the summer tends to be quieter than 
other times of year with groups breaking up for the holidays. We were able to help one 
Scout group in Sept who had their original venue cancel on them at short notice so we ran 

11



6 
 

a session for 20 children at the mill instead and received excellent feedback. Two other 
groups have been in contact interested in sessions in the spring. 
 
 

4    Marketing and Communications 

 
4.1 Print material 
A new edition of What’s On covering the period July – Sept and 
featuring Bursledon Windmill was delivered at the beginning of 
September. 12,500 copies were printed and it is now in 
circulation via our distributors, Brochure Connect, to TICs, 
libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. Bursledon 
Windmill is now in a new What’s On with just Eastleigh Museum. 
 
4.2 Online marketing 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions and 
events from Bursledon, has been to sign ups on a new 
database. Subscribers now number almost 3000. We have 
promoted features such as Special Sundays and other summer 
events in the newsletter and on the website.  
 
4.3 Research 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at on an 
ongoing basis. These are profiled annually using Mosaic 
software and provide ongoing information on which groups of 
people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor profiles compare to 
the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing planning processes.  
  
4.4 Social Media 
HCT Facebook now has over 2800 “likes” and twitter nearly 4,000 followers. Events at 
Bursledon are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis.  Those we have 
promoted during the period include the strawberry basket workshop, the special Sundays 
and the Bursledon Bake Off both on Social Media and the website.  
 

 

Big Theme: Royal Blood 2016  

The Royal Blood website including sign up area and What’s Ons for all upcoming events is 
now live. Although Bursledon Windmill doesn’t have an exhibition as such, we hope it will 
feature complementary activities and or events which we can promote and share. 
 
75,000 DL RB leaflets have been produced promoting all key exhibitions. 48,000 of these 
are being professionally distributed by Brochure Connect across Hampshire and the 
bordering counties (Berkshire, West Sussex, East Dorset, Wiltshire and Surrey) including 
date specific “blitzing” in key areas prior to regional events.  
 
A PR campaign has been embarked upon with our agency Carswell Gould. This includes 
Releases at the launch of major exhibitions and a press event. 
 

12



7 
 

We have taken out Press adverts, including a feature wrap and strip, (we should also 
receive some editorial support alongside this paid advertising space) in Schools Out, 
Primary Times, Defence of the Realm magazine and The View. 
 
For the first time this year our big theme has a media partnership with Wave FM. This 
includes On Air mentions of our events during round ups of what’s on locally (at least 3 
mentions per week for each of our 4 featured events), 2 features in e-shots to their 
customer database, a webpage on wave105.com (over 330,000 visitors per week), and 
specific targeted messaging via their Social Media channels throughout the partnership 
 
 

Cerian Trevan 
Oct 2016 

 
 
  
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM / BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES  
 

30 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 

 
 

Introduction 
 
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum is shared between the partner authorities.   This report provides an update on the budget for 2016/17 
(Appendix 1) and asks the committee to note the contents of the update. 
 
 
Description of 2016/17 Budget 
 
The 2016/17 budget for Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner contributions as follows:  
 
1. Venue Management - salaries 

Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs. 
 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance 
will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council as landlord will 
continue to pick up any such overspend in years where more work needs to be done. 

 
3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 

This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display development, transport, setting up and taking down, 
cases for local exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

 

15

A
genda Item

 4



4. Collections  
This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum, 
organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to 
store, manage and provide public access to these important collections and make them available to the local community in support of 
exhibitions, displays and activities. 
 

5. Better Life Chances 
The Better Life Chances team is responsible for the design, creation, marketing and delivery of participatory learning sessions for young 
people in school and family groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both within the 
museum and beyond in to the community.  The team will place greater emphasis on work with hard to reach people in the specialism of 
Older People, Young People, Schools and Community. 
 

6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions include visitor research, targeted marketing 
campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to 
free editorial and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding 
from external sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate. 
 

These budget headings reflect the headings in the Venue Plans, making it easier to understand where money is being spent and how Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum directly benefit. The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and the 1% pay award. They also 
include more accurate projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading arm and projected income 
from gift aid (where applicable).  
 
In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received 
from volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or organisations.   
 
 

 
 

16



Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill Financial Update         30 November 2016 
   
Appendix  
 

Eastleigh Museum 
 
Expenditure 

Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

3 

Actuals 
15 Sept  

£ 

 Bursledon Windmill 
 
Expenditure 

Budget 
2015/16 
£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 
£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

£ 

Actuals 
15 Sept 

£ 

Venue - salaries 9,663 9,648 9,759 1,326  Venue - salaries 31,301 26,763 27,030 5,291 

Venue Management* 19,264 16,605 18,061 2,047  Venue Management* 7,500 6,383 6,500 4,100 

Public Programmes 18,433 18,433 18,433 7,680  Public Programmes 4,608 4,608 4,608 1,920 

Collections 45,421 45,421 45,421 18,925  Collections 11,355 11,355 11,355 4,731 

Better Life Chances 24,431 24,431 24,431 10,179  Better Life Chances 24,431 24,431 24,431 10,179 

Business Dev 22,577 22,577 22,577 9,407  Business Dev 22,577 22,577 22,577 9,407 

Total Expenditure 139,789 137,115 138,682 49,558  Total Expenditure 101,772 96,117 96,501 35,628 

Income 6,695 5,317 5,919 13  Income 6,695 5,791 5,716 2,601 

Net Expenditure 133,094 131,789 132,763 49,545  Net Expenditure 95,077 90,326 90,785 33,027 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Net Expenditure Budget Actuals Budget Actuals 15 

17



2015/16 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

2016/17 
£ 

Sept 
£ 

Eastleigh Museum 133,094 131,789 132,763 49,545 

Bursledon Windmill 95,077 90,326 90,785 33,027 

Total Net Expenditure 228,171 222,115 223,548 82,572 

     

Income Budget 
2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 
2015/16 

£ 

Budget 
2016/17 

 £ 

Actuals 31 
May 

£ 

Hampshire Cultural Trust 
EBC Eastleigh Museum  
EBC Windmill 
BPC Windmill 

167,771 
30,000 
27,728 

2,672 

161,715 
30,000 
27,728 

2,672 

167,169 
30,000 
23,707 

2,672 

52,572 
30,000 

0 
0 

Total Income 228,171 222,115 223,548 82,572 

 
Excludes all central costs provided within HCT such as Finance, HR, IT, Administration and Legal Services which equates to an estimated cost of 
£36,431. 
*This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance costs based on the average actual costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will 
be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCT/HCC will continue to pick up any overspend in 
years when the work needs to be done. 
 

18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report

